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INDEFENDENT AUDITORY REPORT
TOTHE SHAREHOLDERS OF AMARNA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{4 BAUDE JOINT STOCK COMFANY)

Crpinion

W have audited the financial siatemens of Amenz Cooperathve [nsurance Company (2 Sandi foln ook Company)
{ihe Company ™k, which comprise the statement of fencial position as st 31 Pevsnber 2071 aned the relutod Satoment
of incore, staterent of comprehensiva incoms, stetement of changes in equity and ststement of cush Jows S the
year then ended and notes 2 the franciel stetements from 1o 28 ncludiog & semmary of sigolifeant accounting
policies.

ks our opinion, the seconpanying financial statiessenns present fairly, bnah) matorial respects, the fnancial position of

the Company a5 8t 31 Decewnber 2021, and its fnancial performance and ite sash Sows G the year then ended in
accordanue swith Interrationsd Finsncial Reportdng Sundards (IFRSS™), that ave endorsed by the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia snd other standards and pronouncoments fssued by Saudt OQrpanizasion for Chartered and Professional
Aucountans (CSOCPA™M,

Basis for Opinion

W conducted our audlt in sceordance with Intemational Standards on Awditing (15As), a8 endorsed in the Kingdom
of Ssudi Arabia. Our responsibifities under those standards are further described in the duditors " Responsthilities for
the Audit of the Firancied Stefements secion of our report, We are independent of the Compaty in aseordance with
the professionsl code of conduct and ethies that are erdorsed in the Kingdom of Ssudi Arabia thet are relevant (o our
audit of the Compary”s financial statements and we have fefilled cur ethical responsébilities in accordance with these
requiremenis. We belivve that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and sppropriste to previde a basis for
our opinfon.

Viaterin! Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We dranw atention 1 Note 2 1o the sudited Sasnclul statemoents, which indicstes, among other matiers, that as of 31
December 3021, the semenulsied losses reprosent 120.945% (31 Docember 20201 61.46%) of the Compuny’s share
capital, and 8s of the same date, the sohveney of the Company reached ~48.08% (31 December 2026k 4591 These
events and conditlons indicate a matevial uncertainty on the Company's ability fo contioue as a going concern.
However, various strategic optiups were considersd by the Company's Board of Directors, including capital
restructuring through w rights-issue to increase its share capital hy SR 300 miflion vo strengthen rts Bguidity. The rights-
isgue was approved by the Company's sharcholders on 28 February 2022, whereby, the cuecation of the decision is
subrfect o the approval of Capital Market Authority and Ssud Ceniral Bank.

Based orr the sbove, the Company's roenagement bss assessed its ability w continue as 2 going concern and is
satistiod that the Company's eparations shall continue for the foresesable future under the norma! course of business.
Avoardingly, e fnencial stsements have been prepared on the going concern besis and do not include any
adfusiments, which iy be regaired, ifthe Company is not able to contime 26 8 going conern,

Cur gpinion is not madified in respoct of this mater.

Key Audit Mavters

Key audit matters are those mstiers that, in owr professional judgrent, were of mast significenee in owr audit of the
financial shuernanty of the current period. These masters were addressed b the context of our audit of the nancial
stateraents &5 a whale, 2nd in forming ow opinjon thereon, and we do not provide 2 soparsts opinfon on these matises,
In addition t the matter deseribed in the Marerial Uncertainty Reluwred to Going Corcyrn seetion, we have deternsusd
the mater deseribed betow o be the key audit matser to be communicated in our report,
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TG THE  SHAREHOLDERS OF
COOPERATIVE INSUBANCE COMPANY

(A BAUDE HHNT STOCK COMPANY) - CONTINUGED

Kay Audic Matters {Continged)
Kew sndlt matter

Valeation af whifmute claim Bobifider welsing from
fuveerasy COMMPROy

Ag at 31 December 2021, outstanding claims and olaims
incurved but not reported (FBNR] amounted 1o SR 2040
million {2028 S8 3566 milliog) and 8R 5825 milfion
{2030 BR 3815 miliion), respoctively, 28 reported in note
Tay i the financial satemaents.

The ewtimation of ultimate wvrance contract Nabilities
involves 2 signifivant degree of judgment. The Habilities
are based on the bestestimate of witimate cost of alf clabms
incurred bat nut settled at & given date, whether reported or
not, wgether with the relsted claims handling costs,

In prartionher, cofimates of TBNR and the use of notwarial and
steilsticni profections involve signiffeant fudgmest, A range
of methods are used hy the acmary to determine these
echndcal veserves, Undetlying thess methods are a number
of explicr or implicit axeumptions relsting @0 the wxpecied
seftfernent ameund and setilement petterns of claims,

We considersd this as a key audit matier since use of
management assumptinns and judgments could result in
materisl over [ undersimiement of the Company's
proftiebiliy,

The Company's policies for chims relaied sstimates and
Judgments and secounting policles sre disclosed in notes 2
zad 3, respetively, to the finsncial statements respectively,
Liahilities for outstanding clsims inchuding IBNR, clabms
incurred and claims development tabie have been disclosed
inoote Mayand 19, rospestively, to the financisl sistements,
The Compony’s spproach {o claim refated risk management
tws been disclosed {n note 22 1o the Tinancisl statements.
Segment wise disclosure of clabn related [Tabilitles and
axpense have been given in note 20 o the fingncis!
staternents,

AMANA

Haow sur pudit sddeessed the key sudit matior

We understood and ovabusted key controls around the
clnims handling sad technical resorve setting processes of
the Compaay including completeness and acouiracy of
claims defa used Iy the sstuarid reserving process.

We evalupted the competenics, rapabilities and ehlactivity
of the mansgement’s expert by exgmining  thew
professions! gualificetions and experivness and sssessing
thelr relationship with the Company,

in obiaining swificlent sudit evidence 1o sssess the
integrhty of datn wsed as inpuls Tnto the actuarial
valuations, we tested on sample besis, the completeness
emd aceuracy of underlying clelins duta utflized by the
Company’s actury in estimating the TBNR by cormparing
i w accounting records.

In order 1o assess management’s methodoiogies and
assumptions, we were assised by our actaries to
understand and evalugte tie Company’s actuarial sractices
and the provisions established. In order 1o gain eomfon
aver the Compeny’s actuaria! reporl, owr aclusries
merformed the foliowing:

~ evehited  whether  the  Company's  acluarial
methndotogies wore consistent with those used in the
industry and with prior periods. We  souglt
explanstion from management for any significan:
differsnees:

- nssessed key setuwia! seswoptions including claims
ratios, and éxpected frequency and severity of elaims,
We assessed these msumptions by comparing them
with cur expectations based on the Company’s
historieal expeience, curremt tends and our pwn
industry knowledge; and

- reviewed the approgeisteness of e calowlston
methods wnd spproach along with the assumptions
ised suet sensitivities to the key assumptions,

We also sssested the sppromisicnsss of the Frunciat
statements disclosures relating o Bhis matter ageinst the
requirernents of the IPRS the are endorsed In the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDLIGINT STOUK COMPANY)  CONTINUED

Other nformation ncleded in the Company's 2021 Avnusl Report

{ther frdormation consists of the information included in the Company’s 2027 snnual report, vther they the fsanois!
staterents and our suditors” report therets, Managament o responalide foe the other Informaties in the Company’s
annual report,

Char oprinrior on the Fnancial seiements docs pot cover the other information and we do nod angd will ot express any
form of assurgnce conchusion thoreon.

o conpeotion with our andi of the fnancial statements, our rosponaibility s (o vesd the other sformation identifed
ahgve when 1 beoonres avellable and, in doing 8o, consider whether the other Infermadon 15 materially nconsistent
with the {inencial ststerrens or owr knowledpe obtained in the sudis, or otherwise sppesrs to be nuderially misstated.

When we read the oiher information, i we cenclude that there is & material misstateront therein, we are reguired to
compninicate the matter 1 those charged with govermanee,

Besponsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Finsncial Statements

Munagement is responsible for the prepuration and fair presentation of the Hnancial stsements in accordance with
TR Ss, thatare endorsed in the Kingdom of Seudl Arabia by SCUPA and other sterdards and pronouncements issued
by SOCPA, Regulutions for Companies and the Company s by-lsws and for such Inernal control as management
determrings 18 peoessary to enabie the preperation of {inancial siatomenis that we Bes rom matesial misstatoment,
whether due b Seud or ervor,

In preparing the financial statemaents, managemoit is responsible for assessing the Company™s ability o continue as o
guing concern, disclosing, ss apphieable, maters relsled o going concern and using the polng concern basis of
accounting unless mansgemont sither ntends o lguidate the Company or 1 comse operations, or has po realistic
aitermathve but o da so.

Those churged with goversance, Le. tw Board of Directors. are respensible for oversceing the Company s finencls)
peporting, provuss.

Auditors” vesponsibiiities for the audi of the fingncial statemenis

Cur objectives are o obiein ressonable sssurance abowt whether the francial sirements a3 2 whole are free from
muderls! misstatement, whetber due to fraud or ervor, and 1o sue an aeditors” report that includes our opinies,
Reasonghle assurance fs 2 high level of asuranes, but 15 nol & guareniee that an audit conthucted & acoordance with
Imernationat Sandards on Auditing {18A), tat wre endorsed In the Kingdom of Saudi Arsbia. will slways duect 3
pratosksl misstaiement when i exists, Misstalements can arise from frawd or erroe g are considered material i,
individustly or In the aggregsie. they could reasomably be expecied 10 influencs the economic decisions of users laken
on the basis of these fnancial satements.

As gt of en audit in aceordance with I5As that are endorsed in il Kingdom of Swudi Avbla, we exeveise professionat
udgment and mainisin professional sheptictsm troughout the audit, We alsor

= identily and sssess the risks of material misstatersent of the financial statemeras, whether due o faud or etror,
design snd porform sudit procedures respongive i those riske, snd obtaln sudit ovidence thay i sufficient snd
ppproprisie to provide o hasis for our opinion. The risk of not deiecting & material misseroment resuliing from fraud
is higher than v one resslting from wreor, as fewd omy involve collison, forgery, nlentiong] ormissions,
msrepiesentations, or the override of inturesd coniroly

obiain %o understanding of morasl controd relevant 1o the audit tn order 0 dosign audll procedores that are
appropriete ia the chuwnstances, Bul not fur the purpose of expressing an opindon on e effectivensys of the
Cornpany’s Intorend control;

k3



i%&mé&%m Abewand £-Buvsem & Lo
Sl e B
srmpenlzor By m of PEF z‘mw‘m%mﬁ%,

INDEPENDENT AUDITORSE REPORY
TOTHE SHAREHUOLDERS OF AMANA COOFPERATIVE INSURAMCE COMPANY
(A BAUBLJOINT STOCK COMPANYY - CONTIKUIED

Audltors’ rosponsibilitis for the wadit of the fnanciel siatements {continued)

« gvptuste she appropristonss of seeouning polieies vaed ond e reasomabieness of st ing estlmntes wid related
disciosures made hy the managemeny

%

conciude on the sppropriateness of e management’s use of the going concers basts of accounting and, based on
e audil evidence obuoned, whelbey g muterial m\wa'wéu‘éy existy refated fo pvony or onnditions that may cast
stgmifioant doub on the Company™s sbility 10 continue as & going conowr. we conelude that a material uncorisimy
exists, we e reguived 1o draw attention in our auditors® report 1o the related dhsclosures b the Boancis! stuessents
or, il such disclosures sre insdoguate, © modify our apinios. Owr conclusiony are besad on e audil ovidence
obtained up i the date of our suditors” repeet. However, Bidors everts o conditfons mey cause the Company
cease o noptinue a5 & going concerny sad

pvaluate the overall gﬁ}fmmtati{}:z structure aod comlent of the finencial stasements, mcludm&, he disclosures, and
whether the financial sstements wpresent the underiying ransactions and events In g macny thay solieves i
presemasion.

%

We communicats with those eharged with governanes regsrding, ameng other matters, the plassted seope snd timing
of the audit and significant mwdit findings, including any significant defleleacies Tn Internal controd (het we identily
during our suds.

We aiso provide those charged with governance with & statemens that we line compiied with refevam cthical
requirentents regarding ndependince, wnd 10 corwnunicate with them il relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bewr on ouwr independence, and where spplicable, related safegunrds,

From the maters communionied with those charged with goversance, we determine those matlers that were of most
significance in the audh of the fnancial sialemerds of the current yewr mnd are thevefiwe the key andiy matters, We
describe these maliers n our sudions’ report unless b or reguiation preclades public discivsure shout the mager or
when. in uxtremely rare clrcumsianees, we detormineg that & maizer should not be communieaten in our report heeause
the adverse consequences of dotng 8o would rensonebly be copecied 1o outweigh the public nterant hepefits of such
comaniioation.

Report an other lags! and regulatory requirements

Based on the informmtion thal hes been made svailable 1o us, and ag dizcdosed in Mote 2, the Company's scourmulsed
fogses huve reached 1200549 and solvency margin bas reachodd -48.08% as a1 31 Decombey 2021 which wigpers the
folloswing regelations applicabiz to the Company:

1. Adticle 138 of the Companies Law

4 Avlicle G8LE-af the Implementing regulitions of the Conpeastive Insurance Companies Coniral Law

Al Arem & A Sudsivy, Al Shaikh
& Pariners

Ceriified Public Accountants
B.O. Box 10504

Riyacdh 1143

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

™

Salman B, Al Sudairy
Certified Public Accountant
Registration Mo, 283
31 March 2022 ya
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1 3 , 1Ay ey
: fﬁ S@dauy, AL Shatkh & Farlnars
nfed Public Accountant R g




AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
Note 2021 2020

SAR' 069 SAR' 000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 4 47,040 133,083
Short Term deposit 5 10,000 40,000
Premiums and reinsurers' receivable - net & 87,543 129,207
Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums b 1,433 2,056
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims 7a 1,267 11,763
Reinsurers’ share of claims incurred but not reported Ta 1,205 2,701
Deferred policy acquisition costs 7d 12,606 11,010
Available-for-sale investments 8 15,182 12,872
Held-to-maturity investments 8 44,198 45,045
Prepayménits and other assets 10 14,812 21,511
Property and equipment 9 6,085 5,976
Intangible assets 9 575 000
Statutory deposit 11 19,500 36,000
Acctied commission income on statutory deposit 11 2,989 2876
TOTAL ASSETS. 264,435 459,900
LIABILITIES
Palicyholders claims payable 3,488 1,284
Accrued expenses and offier liabilities 12 42,013 73,081
Reinsurance balances payable 8,176 22,550
Uneamed premiums 7b 113,295 141,100
Unearnéd reinsurance commission Tc 242 456
Outstanding claims Tz 21,401 35,661
Claims incurred but not reported 7a 58,250 58,148
Premfums deficlency reserve 27,167 15712
Other technical reserve 3818 4,795
Employees' end-of-service benefits 13 5342 4,546
Surplus distribution payable 779 779
Provision for zakat and income tax 14 3,559 6,673
Acctued commission income payable to SAMA 11 2,989 2.876
TOTAL LIABILITIES 290,519 367661
EQUITY
Shiare capital 15 130,000 240,000
Accumulated losses {157,227 (147,50%)
Actuarial reserve on end-of-service benefits (1,451) (1,743)
Fair'value reserve for available-for-sale investments 2,594 1,485
TOTALEQUITY {26,084) 92,239
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 264435 459,500
Commitments and contingencics 24

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements,

) n)‘és |

Y
FWe/Manager

/B’oard Member

Chief Executive Officer




AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
STATEMENT OF INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

REVENUES

Gross premiums written

Reinsurance premiums ceded

Excess of loss expenses

Net premiums written

Changes in unearned premiurns

Changes in reinsurers® share of unearned premiams
Net preminms earned

Reinsurance commissions

Other underwriting income

NET REVENUES

UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES
CGross olaims patd

Reinsurers’ share of claims paid

Net ¢laims paid

Changes in outstanding claims

Changes in réinsarers’ share of outstanding claims
Changes in claims incurred but not reported
Changes in'reinsurers' share of claims incurred but not reported
Net claits incurred

Changes in premiums deficiency reserve

Changes in other technical reserves

Policy 4cqisition costs

Inspection and supervision fees

TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS AND EXPENSES
NET UNDERWRITING INCOME

OTHER INCOME/EXPENSES)

Provision for doubtful-debts

General and admiristrative expenses

Dividends and investiment income

Realized gain from sale of available for sale investments
Other income

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES, NET

Total loss for the year before zakat
Surplus atiributable to-the instrance operations
Total loss for the yesr atfribatable
to the shareholders before zakat and income fax

Zakat and income tax

Total lass for the year aitributable
to the shareholders after zakat and ineome tax

1.oss per share - basic and diluted (SAR)

The accompanying notes 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements,

]~

Note

Tb
7b

Tc

7a
Ta
7a

72

7d

14

16

2021 _ 2020
SAR' 000 SART000
275487 329,519

(4,630) (5.361)
(5L187 (44,637
219,670 279,521
27,805 {40,189)
{623) {2:810)
246,852 236,522
1,000 1,902
150 10,786
248,132 248 300
{314,929 {220,510}
833778 27736
(261,151) {192,774)
14260 15,813
(10,496) (3,878)
{192) {29,792
{1,496) {1,048)
(258,985) (211,67%)
{11,455) 292)
977 6,145
{28,357 24,841)
11877 (16,214)
{309,737 {246,881}
(61,665) 2419
(5.503) £23,180)
{59,891) (45,208)
5,198 6311
455 2,223
- 762
(59,741) (59,692)
(121,408} (57,273
{121,406) {57.273)
2,270 {4.564)
(119,136} (61,337
{Restated)
{9.16) (4.76)

o

w te Manager

=B oard Member

Chief Exccutive Officer




AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK, COMPANY)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note 2021 2020
SAR' 000 SAR' 000
Total loss for the year after zakat and tncome tax (119,138) {61,837}
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Ttems that may be reclussified to statements of income in
subsequent years
- Change in fair value of available for sale investments 8 1,564 648
- Transferred from fair value reserve to income for the Vear : (455) (2,223)
1,109 (1,575)
Total comprehensive loss for the year after zakat and income tax {118,027) {63412
Ttems that will not be reclassified to statement of income in
subsequent years
- Actuarial (gain) / loss on end-ofeservice benefit 13 29z {1,204}
Total comprehensive gain / (loss) atiributable to the insurance operations 292 {1,208
Total comprehensive loss attributable to the shareholders after zakat and income tax (117,735) (64,616)

The accompanying notes I to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements,

S

ordy

{pance/Manager /m Member

Chief Executive Officer
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Total loss for the year before zakat and income tax
Adjustments for non-gash items:

Depraciation and amortization

Provision for doubtfisl debts

Realized gain on sale-of availablefor-sale ivestments
Amortization of held-to-maturity invastments

Provision for emplayees' end-of-service benefits

el - Y.

Changes in opersting assets and liabilities:
Premiums and reinsurers” receivable
Reinsurers” share of unearned premiums
Reinsurers” share of ontstanding claims
Reingrers” share of claims incurred byt not reported
Deferred policy acquisition costs

Frepaid expenses and other assets:
Policyliolders claims payable

Accried expenses and other lizbilities
Reinsurers balances payable

Ungdrned premiunms

Unearned Téinsurance commission
Outstanding claims

Claims incurred but not reported

Premium deficiency reserve

Qther technical reserves

Employees’ end-of-service benefits paid 13
Zakat and income tax paid 14
Net cash used in operating activities
CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from maturity of short-term deposit
Additions to available for sale investments
Proceeds.from sale of available for sale investments
Proceeds from held (o maturity investmetits

Purchase of propérty, éqiipment and intangibles

Net cash generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Withdrawa! from statuary deposit

Decrease in fong-term deposits

Transaction cost for capital reduction

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net change in cash-and cash egnivalents

Cash and cash-equivalents ai the beginning of he year 4
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4

L-N- - )

Non-cash information:
Transfer from capital work in progress to property, squipment and intangibles 9
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1 ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Amana Cooperative Insurance Company (the “Company”) is a Saudi Jjoint stock company established in Riyadh,
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia by Royal Decree Number M/35 dated Jumada Al-Akher 3, 1431 H (corresponding to May
17, 2010), and registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under Commercial Registration No. 1010288711 dated
Jumada Al-Akher 10, 1431 H (corresponding to May 24, 2010). The Company’s head office is at Salah-uddin Al-Ayubi
Street P.O. Box 27986, Riyadh 11427, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The objective of the Company is to engage in providing insurance services in accordance with its By-laws and the
applicable regulations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,

On 31 July 2003, corresponding to 2 Jumada I 1424H, the Law on the Supervision of Cooperative Insurance
Companies (“Insurance Law™) was promulgated by Royal Decree Number (M/32). During March 2008, the Saudi
Central Bank ("“SAMA"), as the principal authority responsible for the application and administration of the Insurance
Law and its Implementing Regulations, granted the Company a license to transact insurance activities in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia.

‘The Company’s by-laws were updated to comply with the new companies” regulations, issued by Roval Decree Number
MY/3 on 28/01/1437 H and this is as per the extraordinary general assembly meeting on 23/09/1438 1, corresponding
June 18, 2017.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Basis of presentation and measurement

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs"} as endorsed in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia ("KSA") by Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional
Accountants ("SOCPA"), other standards and pronouncements issued by SOCPA, regulations for Companies and
Company's by-Laws.

In accordance with Article 70 of the SAMA Implementing Regulations, and as per the by-laws of the Company, the
Company maintains separate accounts for both insurance operations and shareholders' operations. It distributes the net
annual insurance surplus, it and when generated, as set forth in the Company's by-laws and the insurance policy in terms
of cooperative insurance. The customer (insurance policy) is valid and paid to date at the time of payment of the
cooperative distribution amount.

The financial statements are prepared under the going concern concept {also, refer 'Going Concern' Note below) and the
historical cost convention, except for the measurement at fair value of available-for-sale investruents and measurement
at present value of employees' end-of-service benefit obligations. The Company’s statement of financial position is not
presented using a current/non-current classification. However, the following balances would generally be classified as
non-current: Held-to-maturity investments, Available-for-sale investments, Property and equipment, Intangible assets,
Statutory deposit, Accrued income on statutory deposit, Employees' end-ofservice benefits and Accrued commission
income payable to SAMA. All other financial statement line items would generally be classified as current,

The Company presents its statement of financial position in order of liquidity. As required by the Saudi Arabian
Insurance Regulations, the Company maintains separate books of accounts for Insurance Operations and Shareholders’
Operations and presents the financial statements accordingly (Note 25). Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
clearly attributable to either activity are recorded in the respective accounts. The basis of allocation of expenses from
Jjoint operations is determined and approved by the management and the Board of Directors.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
(a)  Basis of presentation and measurement {continued)

The statement of financial position, staternents of income, comprehensive income and cash flows of the insurance operations and
shareholders operations which are presented in note 25 of the financial statements have been provided as supplementary financial
information to comply with the requirements of the guidelines issued by SAMA's implementing regulations and is not required under IFRSs,
SAMA implementing regulations requires the clear segregation of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the insurance operations and
the sharcholders operations. Accordingly, the statements of financial positien, statements of income, statements of comprehensive income
and statemenis of cash flows prepared for the insurance operations and shareholders operations as referred to above, reflect only the assets,
liabilities, income, expenses and comprehensive gains or losses of the respective operations.

In preparing the Company-level financial statements in compliance with IFRSs, the balances and transactions of the insurance operations are
amalgamated and combined with those of the shareholders™ operations. Inter-operation balances and transactions are eliminated in full
during amalgamation. The accounting policies adopted for the insurance operations and sharcholders operations are uniform for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Going concern .

The Company's accumnulated losses as of 31 December 2021 are 120.94% (31 December 2020: 61.46%) of the Company's share capital, and
as of the same date, the Company’s solvency reached negative 48.08% (31 December 2020: 45%}. These events and conditions indicate a
material uncertainty on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, However, various strategic options, including capital
restructuring, were considered by the Company's Board of Directors and has already approved the business plan for 2022 on 18 January
2022, Further to this, an increase in share capital through rights issucs amounting to SR 300 million was approved in the extraordinary
general assembly meeting dated 28 February 2022. However, the [egal formalities and regulatory approvals will be arranged. Based on the
above, the management is satisfied that the Company will continue as a going concern for the foreseeable fitture.

(b} Functional and presentation corrency

The financial statements have been prepared in Saudi Arabian Riyals (SAR), which is also the functional currency of the Company. All
financial information presented in SAR has been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

(¢} Fiscal year

The Company follows a fiscal year ending 31 December.

(d)  Critical aceounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of estimates and Judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and
Habilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting year. Although these estimates and judgments are based on management’s best knowledge of current events
and actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Following are the accounting judgments and estimates that are critical in preparation of these financial statements:

The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insnrance contructs

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance comtracts is the Company’s most critical accounting
estimaie. There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be considered in the estimate of the Habdiity that the Company will ultimately
pay for such claims. Estimates are made at the end of the reporting period both for the expected ultimate cost of claim reported and for the
expected altimate costs of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR™), Liabilities for unpaid reported claims are estimated using the input of
assessments for individual cases reported to the Company. At the end of each reporting period, prior year claims estimates are reassessed for
adequacy and changes are made fo the provision,

The provision for IBNR is an estimation of claims which are expected to be reported subsequent to the date of statement of financial
position, for which the insured event has occurred prior to the date of statement of financial position. The primary technique adopted by
management in estimating the cost of notified and IBNR claims, is that of using the past claims settlement trends fo predict future claims
settlement trends. A range of methods such as Chain Ladder Method, Bornhuetter-Ferguson Method and Expected Loss Ratio Method are
used by the actuary to determine these provisions. The actuary has also used a segmentation approach including analyzing cost per member
per year for medical line of business. Underlying these methods are a number of explicit or implicit assumptions relating to the expected
settlement amount and settlement patterns of claims.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
(d)  Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions {(continned)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company determines that financial assets are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
financial assets below its cost. The determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment. A period of 12 months or longer is
consideted to be prolonged and a decline of 30% from original cost is considered significant as per the Company policy. In making this
Jjudgment, the Company evaluates among other factors, the normal volatility in share price, the financial health of the investee, industry and
sector performance, changes in technology, and operationat and financing cash flows.

Tmpairment of receivables

A provision for impairment of receivables and reinsurance receivable is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the receivable is impaired.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair values of available-for-sale investments are based on quoted prices for marketable securifies or estimated fair values. The fair value of
commission-bearing items is estimated based on discounted cash flows using commission for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics.

The fair value of financial instruments where no active market exists or where quoted prices are not otherwise available are determined by
using valuation techniques. In these cases the fair values are estimated from observable data in respect of similar financial instruments or
using models. Where market observable inputs are not available, they are estimated based on appropriate assumptions.

Useful lives of property and equipment and intangible gssets

The Company’s management determines the estimated useful lives for calculating depreciation/amortization. These estimates are determined
after considering the expected usage of the assets or physical wear and tear, Management reviews the residual values, useful lives and
depreciation methed annually. Future depreciation/amortization charge, if any shall be adjusted where the management believes the useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method differ from previous estimates.

Premium deficiency reserve and other technical reserves

Estimation of the premium deficiency reserve is highly sensitive to a number of assumptions as to the future events and conditions. It is
based on an expected loss ratio for the unexpired portion of the risks for written policies, To arrive at the estimate of the expected loss ratio,
the actuary looks at the claims and premiums refationship which is expected to be realized in the future, Other technical reserves represent
unallocated loss adjustment expense reserves and reinsurance accrual reserves. Unallocated loss adjustment expense reserve are based on
estimates of future payments and derived from the ctaim department expenses, including payroll and allocation of other expenses,

Provision for zakat

Zakat provision is made and recorded at the end of each fiscal vear in accordance with Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (ZATCA)
regulations applicable in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Differences in zakat assessments are recorded in the statement of income when final
zakat assessments are obtained.

Employees’ end-of-service benefits
The retirement benefit obligation is determined using projected unit credit method which tequires estimates to be made of the various inputs,
The key estimates are the discount rate, rate of salary, mortality rate and withdrawal rate,

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax asset is recognised only fo the extent that it is probable that the fitture taxable profits will be available and credits can be
utilized. Deferred tax asset has not been provided in these financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 since the
Company is not certain on availability of future taxable profit in foreseeable future to utilize any tax credits,

Contingencies
By their nature, contingencies will only be resolved when one or more future events oceur or fail to occur. The assessment of such
contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgements and estimates of the outcore of future events,
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are summarised below, These policies have been
consistently applied to each of the years presented. There #re no new standards issued, however, there are number of amendments to
standards which are effective from 1 January 2021 but they do not have a material effect on the Company’s Financial Statements. The
Company has not early adopted any standard (interpretation) or amendments that has been issued but which are not yet effective,

Standards issued but not yet effective
The Company has chosen not o early adopt the amendments and revisions to the IFRSs, which have been published and are mandatory for
compliance for the Company with effect from future dates,

Standard/ Description Effective from
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (refer below) 1-Jan-23
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (refer below) I-Jan-23

A. IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

"This standard was published on 24 Jufy 2014 and has replaced IAS 39. The new standard addresses the following items refated to financial
instruments:

a. Classification and measurement:
IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is measurcd at amortized cost, at fair value through other
cotnprehensive income or at fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both:

i. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual

cash flows; and
. the contractual tenms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding (“SPPI™),

The financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, and realized gains or losses are recycled through profit or
loss upoen sale, if both conditions are met:

the agset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and for sale; and

ii,  the contractual terms of cash flows are SPPI

Assets not meeting either of these categories are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Additionally, at initial recognition, an entity
can use the option to designate a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss if doing so ecliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

For equity instruments that are not held for trading, an entity can also make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value of the instruments (including realized gains and losses), dividends being recognized in profit or loss.

Additionally, for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable fo changes in the credit risk of that tiability is recognized in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss.

b. Impairment;

The impairment model under IFRS 9 reflects expected credit losses, as opposed to incurred credit losses under IAS 39. Under the IFRS ¢
approach, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized. Instead, an entity always accounts
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses, The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

{A SAUD] JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
A, IFRS9 -Financial [nstruments (continued)

e. Hedge accounting:

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for hedge accounting that align hedge accounting more closely with Risk Management, The
requirements establish a more principles-based approach to the general hedge accounting model. The amendments apply to all hedge
accounting with the exception of portfolio fair value hedges of interest rate risk (commonly referred to as “fair value macro hedges™). For
these, an entity may continue to apply the hedge accounting requirements currently in IAS 39.This exception was granted largely because the
TASB is addressing macro hedge accounting as a separate project.

Effective date

The published effective date of IFRS 9 was st January 2018. However, amendments fo IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 —
Financial Instraments with IFRS 4 — Insurance Contracts, published on 12¢h September, 2016, changes the existing IFRS 4 1o allow entities
issuing insurance contracts within the scope of IFRS 4 to mitigate certain effects of applying IFRS 9 before the IASB’s new insurance
contract standard (IFRS 17 -~ Insurance Contracts) becomes effective. The amendments introduce two alternative options:

I.  apply a temporary exemption from implementing IFRS 9 until the earlier of

a. the effective date of a new insurance contract standard; or

b.  annual reporting periods beginning on or after Tanuary 1, 2023. Additional disclosures related to financial assets are required
during the deferral period. This option is only available to entities whose activities are predominately connected with insurance
and have niot applied IFRS 9 previously; or

2. adopt IFRS 9 but, for designated financial assets, remove from profit or loss the effects of some of the accounting mismatches that
may occur before the new insurance contract standard is implemented.

The Company has performed a detailed assessment as of reporting date:

1. The carrying amount of the Company’s liabilities arising from contracts within the scope of IFRS 4 (including deposit components or
embedded derivatives unbundled from insurance contracts) were compared to the totel carrying amount of ali its liabilities; and

2. the total carrying amount of the Company's liabilities connected with insurance were compared to the total carrying amount of all its
liabilities. Based on these assessments the Company determined that it is eligible for the temporary exemption. Consequently, the
Company has decided to defer the implementation of IFRS 9 until the effective date of the new insurance contracts standard.
Disclosures related to financial assets required during the deferral period are included in the Company’s financial statements,

Impact assessment

As af December 31, 2021, the Company has total financial assets and insurance related assets amounting to SAR 228 million and SAR 104
million respectively. Financial assets and insurance related assets are not mutually exclusive in terms of classification. The financial assets
consist of financial assets held at amortized cost and other financial assets.

Currently, financial assets held at amortized cost amount to SAR. 212 million and mainly consist of cash and cash equivalents, short term
deposits, premium and reinsurance receivables.

Other financial assets consist of available-for-sale investments amounting to SAR 15 million. The Company expect to use the FVOCI
classification of these financial assets based on the business model of the Company for debt securities and strategic nature of equity
investments. However, the Company is yet to perform a detailed assessment to determine whether the debt securities meet the SPPI test as

required by IFRS 9,

Credit risk exposure, concentration of credit risk and credit quality of these financial assets are mentioned in note 23. The Company's
financial assets have low credit risk as at December 31, 2021, .

The above is based on high-level impact assessment of IFRS 9. This preliminary assesstient is based on currently available information and
may be subject to changes arising from further detailed analyses or additional reasonable and supportable information being made available
to the Company in the future. Overall, the Company expects some effect of applying the impairment requirements of IFRS 9: However, the
impact of the same is not expected to be significant. At present it is not possible to provide reasonable estimate of the effects of application
of this new standard as the Company is vet to perform a detailed review.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

Overview
This standard has been published in May, 2017, It establishes the principles for the recognition, measirement, presentation and disclosure of

insurance eontracts and supersedes IFRS 4 — Insurance contracts.

'The new standard applies to insurance contracts issued, to all reinsurance contracts and to investment contracts with discretionary
participating features, provided the entily also issues insurance contracts. It requires to separate the following components from insurance
contracts:

i embedded derivatives, if they meet certain specified criteria;
ii distinct investment components; and
iii  any promise to transfer distinet goods or non-insurance services.

These components should be accounted for separately in accordance with the related standards (IFRS 9 and IFRS 15).

Measurement
In contrast to the requirernents in TFRS 4, which permitted insurers to continue to use the accounting policies for measurement purposes that

existed prior to January 2015, IFRS 17 provides the following different measurement models:

The General Measurement Model (GMM) is based on the following “building blocks™

a, the fulfilment cash flows {(FCF), which comprise;
+  probability-weighted estimates of future cash flows,
+  an adjustment to refect the time value of money (i.e, discounting) and the financial risks associated with those future cash
fiows, and
+  arisk adjustment for non-financial risk;

b. the Contractual Service Margin (CSM) - The CSM represents the unearned profit for a2 group of insurance contracts and will be
recognized as the enfity provides services in the future, The CSM cannot be negative at inception; any net negative amount of the
fulfilment cash flows at inception will be recorded in profit or loss immediately,

At the end of each subsequent reporting period, the carrying amount of a group of insurance contracts is re-measured to be the sum of:

*  the liability for remaining coverage, which comprises the FCF related to future services and the CSM of the group at that date; and
= the liability for incurred claims, which is measured as the FCF related to past services allocated to the group at that date.

The CSM is adjusted subsequently for changes in cash flows related to fiture services. Since the CSM cannot be negative, changes in future
cash flows that are greater than the remaining CSM are recognized in profit or loss.

The effect of changes in discount rates will be reported in either profit or loss or other comprehensive income, determined by an accounting
policy choice,

The Variable Fee Approach (VFA) is a mandatory modef for measuring contracts with direct participation features (also referred to as
“direct participating contracts’), This assessment of whether the contract meets these criteria is made at inception of the confract and not
reassessed subsequently. For these contracts, in addition to the adjustment under GMM, the CSM is also adjusted for;

i. the entity’s share of the changes in the fair value of underlying items ,
li.  the effect of changes in the time value of money and in financia) risks not relating to the underlying items.

In addition, a simplified Premium Allocation Approach (PAAY is permitted for the measurement of the liability for remaining coverage if it
provides a measurement that is not materially different from the General Measurement Model for the group of contracts or if the coverage
period for each contract in the group is one year or less. With the PAA, the liability for remaining coverage corresponds fo premiums
veceived at initial recognition less insurance acquisition cash flows. The General Measurement Model remains applicable for the
measurement of the liability for incurred claims, However, the entity is not required to adjust future cash flows for the time value of money
and the effect of financial risk if those cash flows are expected to be paid/received in one vear or less from the date the claims are incurred.

Effective date
The IASB issued an Exposure Draft Amendments to IFRS 17 proposing certain amendments to IFRS 17 during June 2019 and received

comments from various stakeholders. The JASB is currently re-deliberating issues raised by stakeholders. For any proposed amendmients to
IFRS 17, the IASB will follow its normal due process for standard-setting, The effective date of IFRS 17 and the deferral of the IFRS 9
temporary exemption in [FRS 4 is currently | January 2021. Under the current exposure draft, it is proposed to amend the IFRS 17 effective
date to reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, Further, on 17 March 2020, the (IASB) completed its discussions on the
amendments to [FRS 17 and decided that the effective date of the Standard will be deferred to reporting periods beginning on or after 01
January 2023. Eardier application is permitted if both IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9 - Financial
Instruments have also been applied. The Company intends to apply the Standard on its effective daie.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (continued)

Transition
Retrospective application is required. However, if full retrospective application for a group of insurance contracts is impracticable, then the
entity is required to choose either a modified retrospective approach or a fair value approach.

Presentation and Disclosures
The Company expects that the new standard will result in a change to the accounting policies for insurance contracts and reinsurance, [and
investment contracts with discretionary participating features, if applicable} together with amendments to presentation and disclosures.

Impact
The Company has performed an initial impact assessment of the application and implementation of IFRS 17. As of the date of the

publication of these financial statements, the final financial impact of adopting the standard has yet to be fully assessed by the Company.
The Company has undertaken an initial operational impact gap analysis and currently undergoing through detailed operational and financial
impact assessment. Key gaps and their impact are as follows:

Impact Area Summary of Impaect

Financiai lmpact The Company has ascertained the financial impact on reported balances of vear 2018,
As the Company's most of insurance contracts are short-termed and short tailed
entitling for premium allocation approach (PAA) which is largely similar to current
account practice, no significant impact is expected. The Company has alse
successfully finalized the reassessment of 2020 results as part of the Ist Dry-Run
orchestrated by the regulator and submitted on 30 November 2021 to SAMA.

Based on the conducted simulation, the financial impact of applying IFRS {7
compared to IFRS 4 was also not significant. The Company will solidify its view on
the financial impact while completing the 2nd and 3rd dry-runs, planned before the
end of 2022.

Data impact IFRS 17 has additional data requirements (e.g. premium due date for initial
recoghition, premium receipt data for the LFRC, RI contracts held breakdown in to
risk attaching or loss incurring for assessing contract boundaries, lower granularity to
meet level of aggregation requirements and data for additional disclosures as per IFRS
L 7). Further extensive exercise has carried out to ensure the required data is available.

Ne major data deficiencies or shortfalls were reported during the completion of the 1st
dry-run simulation.

I'F systems impact Detailed assessment is needed of existing systems capabilities for IFRS 17
calculations, storage and reporting and whether new systemns/calculation engines
should be implemented.

Process impact ‘The company has carried out an operational impact assessment exercise to assess the
operational impact of implementing IFRS 17. Since, majority of the company’s
contracts would be measured under the premium allocation approach, the process
impact is expected to be moderate.

No major process impact was reported during the completion of the 1st dry-run
simulation.

Impact on Reinsurance arrangements Further assessment has carried out to confirm measurement approach for reinsurance
arrangements where R1 gross premium ceded does not automatically qualify for PAA,

Impact on policies and control frameworks The Company's policies and procedures needs updating to accommodate the changes
in the Company’s processes and systems related to IFRS 17 implementation. Detailed
exercise for the purpose has been carrded out after ascertaining financial and
operational gaps assessment.

The Company is currenily in design phase of IFRS 17 implementation which requires developing and designing new processes and
procedures for the business including any system developments required under IFRS 17 and detaifed assessment of business requirements.
Following are the main areas under design phase and status of the progress is as follows:
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 BDECEMBER 2021

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Insurance contracts (continued)
Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the

insurance risk is significantly reduced subsequently unless all rights and liabilities are extinguished or expired.

Reinsurance

Reinsurance is distributed between treaty, facultative and excess of loss reinsurance contracts. Contracts entered into by the Company with
reinsurers under which the Company is compensated for losses on one or more contracts issued by the Company and that meet the
classification requirements for insurance contracts in 'Insurance contracts - note’ are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Contracts that
do not meet these classification requirements are classified as financial assets. Insurance contracts entered into by the Company under which
the contract holder is another insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance contracts. An asset or liability is recorded in the
statement of financial position - insurance operations’ representing payments due from reinsurers, the share of losses recoverable from
reinsurers and premiums due to reinsurers. Amounts receivable from reinsurance is estimated in a manner consistent with the claim liability
associated with the insured parties. Reinsurance assets or labilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire
or when the contract is transferred to another party.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of impairment arises during the reporting
year. Impairment oceurs when objective evidence exists that the Company may not recover outstanding amounts under the terms of the
contract and when the impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the reinsurer can be measured reliably. The impairment
loss is recorded in the statement of income as incurred,

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obli gations 1o policyholders.

Provisions, accrued expenses and other liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits wili be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation, Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses. Liabilities are recognized for amounts 1o be paid in the
future for goods or services received, whether billed by the supplier or not.

Investments

Available-for-sale investments (AFS)

Anvailable-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are neither classified as held for trading or held to maturity
or loans and receivables, nor are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Such investments are initially recorded at cost, being the fair
value of the consideration given including transaction costs directly attributable t the acquisition of the investment and subsequently
measured at fair value. Cumulative changes in fair value of such investments are recognized in other comprehensive income in the statement
of comprehensive income under “Net change in fair value — Available for sale investments”. Realized gains or losses on sale of these
investments are reported in the statement of income under “Reafized pain / (loss) on investments,”

Dividend. commission income and foreign currency gainfoss on available-for-sale investments are recognized in the statement of income or
statement of comprehensive income as part of the net investment income / 1ogs.

Fair values of available for sale investments are based on quoted prices for marketable securities or estimated fair values, The fair value of
commissicn-bearing items is estimated based on discounted cash flows using commission for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics,

For unquoted investments, fair value is determined by reference to the market value of a similar investment or where the fair values cannot
be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques. The input to these models is taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.

The Company evaluates whether the ability and intention fo sell its AFS financial assets in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Company is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Company may elect to reclassify these
firancial assets if management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity, Reclassification to
loans and receivables is permitted when the financial asset meets the definition of loans and receivables and management has the intention
and ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity. The reclassification fo Held-to-Maturity (HTM} is permitted only
when the entity has the ability and intention to hold the financial asset until maturity. For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-
for-sale category, the fair vatue at the date of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised fo profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR).
Any difference between the new amortised cost and the mafurity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using EIR. If
the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of income.

Held as Fuir Value through Statement of Income
Investments in this category are classified if they are held for trading or designated by management as FVSI on initial recognition.
Investments classified as trading are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in short term and are recorded in the
statement of financial position at fair vatue. Changes in fair value are recognized in statement of income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Major areas of design phase Summary of progress

Govermance and control framework The Company has put in place a comprehensive IFRS 17 governatice program which
includes establishing oversight steering committee for monitoring the progress of
implementation and assigning roles and responsibilities to various stakeholders.

Operational area The Company is in progress of designing operational aspects of the design phase
which includes establishing comprehensive data policy and data dictionary. Also the
Company is finalizing architectural designs for various sub-systems. The Company
has progressed through assessment of business requirements and currently working on
vendor selection while finalizing various process needed for transition and assessment
of new resources needed.

Technical and financial area The Company has completed various policy papers encompassing varicus technicaj
and financial matters after concluding on poticy decisions required under the IFRS 17
standard. The policy decisions are taken after due deliberations arnong various
stakebolders. Currently majority of policy papers have been approved by the
Company's IFRS 17 project steering committee,

Assurance plan The Company is working along with other stakeholders to finalize the assurance plan
for transitional and post-implementation periods.

The Company has started its implementation process and has set up a project team, supervised by Company's CEO. Furthermore, to assess
financial and operational impact of IFRS-17, the Company has hired PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) as their consultants.

The effective interpretations/improvement/amendments do not have materiat impact on these financial statements of the company.

The significant accounting policies used in preparing these financial statements are set out below and have been consistently applied
unless otherwise mentioned:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of current accounts at banks and deposits maturing within 3 months from acquisition date.

Cash flow statement
The Company’s main cash flows are from insurance operations which are classified as cash flow from operating activities, Cash flows

generated from investing and financing activities are classified accordingly.

Premiums and Reinsurance receivable-net

Premiums receivable are stated at gross written premiums receivable from insurance contracts, less an allowance for any uncollectible
amounts, Premiums and reinsurance balances receivable are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. The carrying value of receivable is reviewed for impairment and whenever events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, the impairment loss is recorded in “Other expenses / income - net™ in the statement
of income. Receivable balances are derecognised when the Company no longer controls the contractiual rights tha comprise the receivable
balance, which is normally the case when the receivable balance is sold, or all the cash flows atiributable to the balance are passed through
to an independeni third party. Receivables disclosed in note 6 fall under the scope of IFRS 4 “Insurence contracts™. Receivables are also
analyzed as per the ageing and accordingly provision is maintained on a systernatic basis. )

Foreiga currencies

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in Saudi Riyals (SAR) at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies are transtated to SAR at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date of
statement of financial position. Exchange differences are taken to the statements of insurance operations or statement of shareholders’
operations. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using exchange rate at the
date of initial transaction and are not subsequently restated. As the Company’s foreign currency iransactions are primarily in US dollars,
foreign exchange gains and losses are not significant.

Insurance contracts
The Company issues insurance contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance contracts are those contracts where the insurer accepts

significant insurance risk from the policyholder by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event adversely
affects the policyholder. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing benefits
paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments (continued)

Held as Faiv Value through Statement of Income (continued)

An investment may be designated at FVSI by the management, at initial recognition, if it satisfies the criteria laid down by IAS 39 except for
the equity instruments that do not have a quoted price in an active market and whose fair values cannot be refiably measured.

Investments at FVSI are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in the fair value are recognised in the statement
of income for the year in which it arises. Transaction costs, if any, are not added to the fair value measurement at initial recognition of FVS!
investments. Special commission income and dividend income on financial assets held as FVSI are reflected as income from FVSI financial
instruments in the statement of income.

Investments at FVSI are not reclassified subsequent to theiz initial recognition, except that nor-derivative FVSI instrument, other than those

designated as FVSI upon initial recognition, may be reclassified out of the FVSI fair value through the statement of income (i.e., trading)
category if they are no longer held for the purpose of being sold or repurchased in the near term, and the following conditions are met:

- If the financial asset would have met the definition of loans and receivables, if the financial asset had not been required to be classified as
held for trading at initial recognition, then it may be reclassified if the entity has the intention and ability to hold the financial asset for the
foreseeable future or until maturity.

- If the financiai asset would not have met the definition of loans and receivables, and then it may be reclassified out of the trading category
only in "rare circumstances’, '

Held-to-maturity

Investments having fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity are classified as held-to-maturity. Held to maturity investments are initially recognised at fair value including direct and incremental
transaction cests and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for impairment in value. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition using an effective vield basis. Any gain or loss on such investments is recognised in the
statement of income when the investment is derecognised or impaired.

[nvestments classified as held-to-maturity cannot ordinarily be sold or reclassified without impacting the Company's ability to use this
classification and cannot be designated as a hedged item with respect to commission rate or prepayment risk, reflecting the longer-term
nature of these investments,

However, sales and reclassifications in any of the following circumstances would not impact the Company's ability to use this classification:

- Sales or reclassifications that are so close to maturity that the changes in market rate of commission would not have a si gnificant effect on

the fair value,
- Sales or reclassifications after the Company has collected substantially all the assets” original principal.
- Sales or reclassifications attributable to non-recurring isofated events beyond the Company's control that could not have been reasonably

anticipated.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred *loss event’) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in payments;

. it becoming probable that the issuer or debtor will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization;

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

. observable data indicating that there is 2 meagutable decrease in the estimated future cash flow from a group of financial assets since

the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot vet be identified with the individual financial assefs in the
Company, including:

* adverse changes in the payment status of issuers or debtors in the Company: or

+ national or local economic conditions at the country of the issuers that correlate with defaults on the assets.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment foss on a financial asset exists, the impairment is determined as follows:

~ For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the significant or prolong decline in the fair value of the financial asset,

- For assets carried at amortized cost, impaimment is based on estimated future cash flows that are discounted at the original effective
conumission rate.
For available-for-sale financial assets, the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an investment or
a group of investments is impaired.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Imgairment of financial assets (continued) ] L . .

tmpairment. Objective evidence may include indications that the borrower is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in special commission income or principal payments, the probability that it will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and where observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
economic conditions that correlate with defaults. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative Joss measured as the
difference between the amortized cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the
statement of income and statement of comprehensive income. I, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the
increase can be objectively related to credit event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the statement of income and
statement of comprebensive income, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of income and statement of comprehensive
income.

For equity investments held as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in fair value below its cost represents objective evidence
of impairment, The impairment loss cannot be reversed through statement of income as Jong as the asset continues to be recognised i.e, any
increase in fair value after impairment has been recorded can only be recognised in other comprehensive income. On derecognition, any
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is included in the stztement of income under “Realized gain /
{1oss) on investments.

The determination of what is *significant’ or ‘prolonged’ reguires judgement. A period of 12 months or longer is considered to be prolonged
and a decline of 30% or more from original cost is considered significant as per the Company policy. In making this judgement, the
Company evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

In making an assessment of whether an investment in debt instrument is impaired, the Company considers the factors such as market's
assessmerit of creditworthiness as reflected in the bond yields, rating apencies™ assessment of creditworthiness, country’s ability to access the
capital markets for new debt issuance and probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders suffering losses through voluntary or
mandatory debt forgiveness. The amount recorded for impatrment is the cumulative foss measured as the difference between the amortised
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment foss on that investment previcusly recognised in the statement of income and statement of
comprehensive income.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost fess accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Subsequent costs are included in the
assei’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured retiably, All other tepairs and maintenance are charged to
the statement of income during the financial period in which they are incurred. Land is net depreciated. The cost of other items of property
and equipment is depreciated on the straight line method to allocate the cost over estimated useful lives, as follows:

Lower of usefui life or lease term

Leaschold improvements 5
Computer and office equipment's 4
Fumiture and fittings b]
Vehicles 4

The assets” residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. The carrying values of these
assets are reviewed for impairment when event or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any
such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals, if any, are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrving amount and are included in “other
income{expenses)” in the statement of income.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress, includes facility refurbishment and upgradation projects that are being developed for future use. When
commissioned, capital work in progress will be transferred to the respective category i.e. property and equipment or intangible asset and
depreciated and accounted, respectively in accordance with the Company’s policy.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are shown at historical cost less accumulated amortization. They have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at
cost less accumuiated amortization and impairment losses. The Company amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life using straight-
line method over 4 years.

Empairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
depreciation arc reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the catrying amount may not be
recoverable,

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrving amount exceeds ifs recoverable amouni. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest fevel for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employees' end-of-service benefits

‘The Company operates an end of service benefit plan for its employee based on the prevailing Saudi Labour Laws. Accruals are made in
accordance with the actuarial valuation under projected unit credit method, while the benefits payments obligation is discharged as and when
it falls due,

Remeasurements for actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of financial position with a corresponding credit
to equity through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Rermeagurements are not reclassified to statement of income
in subsequent periods.

Past service cost are recognised in statement of income on the earlier of:
- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- The date the Company recognizes related restructuring costs

Net special commission incomie is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Company recognises the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation in the statement of income under generat and administrative expenses:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non
routine setilements
- Net special commission expense or income

Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits include leave pay and airfare, are current liabilities included in acerued expenses, measured at the
undiscounted amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.

Other short term employee benefits
The Company pays retirement contributions for its Saudi Arabian employees to the General Organization for Social Insurance. This
represents a state-owned defined contribution plan. The payments made are expensed as incurred.

Liability adequacy test

At each statement of financial position date, the Company assesses whether its recognised insurance liabilities are adequate using current
estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. If such an assessment shows that the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities
is inadequate in the light of estimated future cash flows, the entire deficiency is immediately recognised in the statement of income and an
unexpired risk provision is made.

Zakat and income tax

It accordance with the regulations of the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority ("ZATCA"), the Company is subject to zakat attributable to the
Saudi shareholders and to income tax attributable to the foreign shareholders. Provision for zakat and income tax is charged to the statement
of profit or loss. Additional amounts payable, if any, at the finalization of final assessments are accounted for when such amounts are
determined, Zakat is computed on the Saudi shareholders' share of equity and/ or net income using the basis defined under the regulations of
ZATCA. Income tax is computed on the foreign shareholders' share of net income for the year,

The Company withholds taxes on certain transactions with non-resident parties, including dividend payments to foreign shareholders, in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia as required under Saudi Arabian Income Tax Law. Withholding taxes paid on behalf of non-resident parties,
which are not recoverable from such parties, are expensed.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated by using the statement of financial position liabitity method, providing the temporary differences between the
carrying amount of assets and Habilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred
tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates
enacted at the statement of financial position date. Deferred fax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the fumre taxable
profits will be avaifable and credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of income, except in the case of items credited or charged to other comprehensive
incomefequity in which case it is included in other comprehensive income/equity.

Deferred tax asset has not been provided in these financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 since the Company does not
anticipate availability of future taxable profit in foreseeable future to utilize any tax credits, The deferred tax liability has not been recorded
since there are no temporary taxable differences.

Statutory deposit

Statutory deposit represents 15% of the paid up capital of the Company which is maintained with a bank desi gnated by SAMA, in accordance
with The Cooperative Insurance Companies Control Law for insurance companies. This statutory deposit cannot be withdrawn without the
consent of SAMA.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTIN UED)
Revenue recognition

Recognition of premium and commission revenue

Premisms and commission are recorded in the statement of income based on straight line method over the insurance policy coverage period
except for long term engineering policies and marine cargo policies. Unearned premiums are calculated on a straight line method over the
insurance policy coverage except for:

- Last three months premium at a reporting date is considered as uniearned in respect of marine Cargo;

- Pre-defined calculation for Engineering class of business for risks undertaken that extend beyond a single year. In accordance with this
calculation, lower premiums are eared in the first year which gradually increases towards the end of the tenure of the policy.

Unearned premiums represent the portion of premiums written relating o the unexpired period of coverage. The change in the provision for
uniearned premium is taken to the statement of income in the same order that revenue is recognised over the period of risk,

Insurance policyholders are charged for policy administration services and policy fees, These fees are recognized as revenue over the period
in which the related services are performed. If the fees are for services provided in future periods, then they are deferred and recognised over
future periods.

Claims
Claims consist of amounts payable to policyholders and third parties and related loss adjustment expenses, net of salvage and other

FECOVETies.

Gross outstanding claims comprise the gross estimated cost of claims incurred but not setiled at the statement of financial position date
together with related claims handling costs, whether reported by the insured or not. Provisions for reported claims not paid as of the
statement of financial position date are made on the basis of individual case estimates. In addition, a provision based on management's
Judgment and the Company’s prior experience is maintained for the cost of settling claims incurred but not reported including related claims
handling costs at the statement of financial position date.

The outstanding claims are shown on a gross basis and the related share of the reinsurers is shown separately. Further, the Company does not
discouni ts Hability for unpaid claims as substantiaily ail claims are expected © be paid within one year of the statement of financial
position date,

Deferred policy acquisition costs
Commission paid to sales staff and incremental direct costs incurred in relation to the acquisition and renewal of insurance contracts are

deferred and shown as an asset in statement of financial position. The deferred policy acquisition costs are subsequently amortised over the
terms of the insurance contracts to which they relate as premiums are earned and charged to statement of income.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position only when there is
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on 2 nef hasis, or realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultancously. Income and expenses are not offset in the statement of ncome unless required or permitted by any accounting
standard or interpretation.

Trade date accounting
All routine purchases and sales of financial assets are initially recognized / derecognized on the trade date (i.e. the date on which the

Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument), Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require settlement of assets within the time frame penerally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

De-recoguition of financial instruments

The derecognition of a financial instrument takes place when the Company ne longer controls the contractual rights that comprise the
financial instrument, which is normally the case when the instrument is sold, or all the cash flows attributable to the instrument are passed
through to an independent third party and the Company has lso transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Salvage and sabrogation reimbarsement
Some insurance contracts permit the Company to seil (usually damaged) assets acquired in settling a claim (for example, salvage). The
Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation),

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the measurement of the outstanding claims liability. The allowance is the
amount that can reasonably be recovered from the disposal of the asset,

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an allowance in the measurement of the outstanding claims liability. The allowance is the
assessment of the amount that can be recovered from the third party.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Operating segments

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in providing products or services (& business segment), which is
subject (o risk and rewards that are different from those of other segments. For management purposes, the Company is organized into
business units based on their products and services and has the following reportable segments;

. Medical

. Motor

. Property & casualty

. Shareholders” segment - reporting shareholder operations of the Company. Income earned from investments is the only revenue

generating activity. Certaint direct operating expenses and other overhead expenses are atlocated fo this segment on an appropriate
basis. The surplus or loss from the insurance operations is allocated to this segment on an appropriate basis.

Operating segments have been approved by management in respect of the Company’s activities, assets and liabilities and is based on current
reportiag 1o the Chief Executive Officer.

Fair values
The fair value of financial assets are based on quoted prices for marketabte securities or estimated fair values. The fair value of commission-

bearing items is estimated based on discounted cash flow using commission for items with similar terms and risk characteristics.

For financial assets where there is no active market, fair value is determined by reference to the market value of a similar financial assets or
where the fair values cannot be derived from active market, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques. The inputs of this
models is taken from observable market where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
vaiues.
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4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

2021 2020
~ SAR' 000 SAR' 000
Insurance  Shareholders' Insurance  Shareholders'
. . Fotal . . Total
operations operations operations operations
Cash at bank 21,338 25,672 47,010 35,591 17,755 53,346
Cash in hand 30 - 30 76 - 76
Deposits maturing within 3 months
from acquisition date - - - - 80,561 80,561
21,368 25,672 47,040 35,667 98316 133,983

All bank balances and deposits are placed with SAMA regulated local banks with sound credit ratings under Standard and Poor’s and
Moody’s rating methodology. The deposits earned commission at an average rate of 0.78% for 31 December 2020.

5 SHORT TERM DEPOSIT

Short-term deposit represents murabaha deposit having original maturity between 3 months and 12 menths from the reporting date. Short
term deposit ean profit at an average rate of 5.23% per annum (2020: 4.22% per annur). The deposit shall mature on 24 April 2022,

The carrying amounts of the deposit is reasonably approximate to its fair value at the reporting date.

6 PREMIUMS AND REINSURERS' RECEFVABLE - NET

2021 2020
Receivables comprise amounts due from the following: SAR' 000 SAR' 000
Policyholders 58,188 56,484
Brokers and agents 48,803 76,641
Related parties (note 19) 2,026 3,746
Receivables from reinsurers 34,147 42,454
143,164 179,325
Less: provision for doubtful recefvables (55,621) {50,118)
Premiums and reinsurers’ receivable - net 87£1§_ 129,207
The movement in the provision for doubtful receivables is as follows: 2021 2020

SAR' 000 SAR' 000

Balance af the beging of the vear 50,118 26,938
Charge for the year 5,503 23,180
Balance at the end of the year 55,621 30,118

As at 31 December, the aging of receivables were as follows:

1 Past due but not impaired I Past due and impaired ]
Less than More than
. I- - .
Total 30 days 3 -60days 61-90days 91-180days 181-360 days 360 days
SAR' 000
2021 143,164 41,246 8,836 4,488 12,979 10,923 64,692
20620 179,325 50,703 9979 11,813 31,775 20,067 54,988

The five largest customers accounts for 18% of the receivable as at 31 December 2021 (2020: 20%).
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3i DECEMBER 2021

7 MOVEMENT IN OUTSTANDING CLAIMS, UNEARNED PREMIUMS, UNEARNED REINSURANCE
COMMISSION AND DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS (CONTINUED)

d}  Deferred policy acquisition costs 2021 2020
SAR' 060 SAR' 000
Beginning of the year 11,010 8,328
Incurred during the year 29,953 27,523
Amortized during the year {28,357) {24,841)
End of the year 12,606 11,010

8 INVESTMENTS

Investments are classified as follows:

2021 2020
SAR™ 000 SAR' 000
Insurance  Shareholders’ Insurance Shareholders’
. . Total . . Total
operations operations operations operations
Availabie-for-sale investments 1,923 13,259 15,182 1,923 10,949 12,872
Held-to-maturity investments - 44,198 44,198 - 49.045 49,045
1,923 57,457 59,380 1,923 59,994 61,017

8.1 Available-for-sale investment in insurance operation represents SR 1.92 million (2020: SR 1.92 million) with respect to
the Company’s shareholding in Najm for Insurance Services Company (“Najm”) which represents 3.85% (2020: 3.85%)
share capital holding in Najm.

8.2 investments for shareholders’ operations comprised as follows: 2021 2020
SAR' 000 SAR' 000
Available-for-sale investments - Equity instruments (Domestic) 13,259 10,949
Held-to-maturity investments - Debt instruments (Domestic) 44,198 44,035
Held-to-maturity investments - Debt instruments {International) - 5,010
57,457 59,994

8.3 The Held-to-maturity investment represents sukuks eaming average profit at a rate of 3.91% per annum (2020: 3.40%
per annum} having maturities upto 20 April 2027,

The movetnents in available-for-sale investments for shareholders® operations are as follows:

2021 2020
SAR' (00  SAR'000

Opening balance 16,949 17,375
Additions 2,788 -
Disposals at cost (1,587) (4,851)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale investments 1,564 648
Transferred from fair value reserve to income for the year (45%) (2,223)
Closing balance ' 13,259 10,949
The movements in held to maturity investments for shareholders’ operations are as follows:

2021 2020

SAR' 000 SAR' 000

Opening balance 49,045 48,640
Arnortization 403 405
Disposat (5,250) -

Closing balance 44,198 49,045
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

10  PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS 2021 2020
SAR' 000 SAR' 000
Deferred medical claims review fees 2477 4,621
Prepaid medical insurance premiums L7710 1,102
Employees’ receivables 1,701 788
Prepaid excess of loss expenses 1,613 872
Value added tax 966 -
Deferred CCHI Fees 638 1,208
Deferred SAMA fees 566 705
Accrued interests 364 84
Prepaid reat 254 315
Accrued Manafeth income - 5,999
Others 4,463 5,817
14,812 21.511

11 STATUTORY DEPOSIT

Statutory deposit represents 15% of the paid up capital of the Company which is maintained with local bank designated by SAMA in accordance with
the Cooperative Insurance Companies Control Law for insurance companies. The Company, on 27 July 2021, obtained approval from SAMA fo
withdraw SR 16.50 million from the statutory deposit. The statutory deposit is placed with a counterparty having investment grade credit rating. Accrued
commission income on statutory deposit is shown as an asset and liability in the statement of financial position,

12 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES 2021 2020
SAR' 000 SAR' 000
Medical service providers' payables 9,350 21,970
Comrnission payable 9,888 12,238
Accrual against stale cheques 7,461 7,529
Unallocated receipts 6,067 19,330
Provision for reinsurance withholding tax 2,430 2,270
Accrued employees' benefits 2,231 1,768
Inspection and supervision fees 1,580 1,566
Accrued BoD allowances 1,112 1,563
Value added tax - 1,107
Others 1,894 3,740
42.013 73,081

13 EMPLOYEES' END-OF-SERVICE BENEFITS

The Company operates a defined benefit plan for its emplovees based on the prevailing Saudi Labor Law. Accruals are made in accordance with the
actuarial valuation under the projected unit credit method while the benefit payments obligation is discharged as and when it falls due. The amounts
recognized in the statement of financial position and movement in the obli gation during the year based on its present value are as follows:

2021 2020
SAR' 0600 SAR’ 000
Present value of defined benefit obligation 5,342 4,546
Movement of defined benefit obligation
Opening balance 4,546 4,043
Charge to statement of income
Current service cost 1,531 1,119
Past service cost 43 65
1,574 1,184
Charge to statement of comprehensive income
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on employees' end-of-service benefits - 292) 1,204
Payment of benefits during the year (486) (1,885
Closing balance 5,342 4,546
Principal actuarial assumptions . 2021 2020
Valuation discount rate 2.05% 1.0%
Expected rate of increase in salary level across different age bands 1.0% 2.0%
Withdrawal rate Moderate Moderate
Duration of the liability (in years) 5.26 5.56
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDEJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINLED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

13 EMPLOYEES' END-OF-SERVICE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The impact of changes in sensitivities on present value of defired benefit obligation is as follows:

Valuation discount rate
- increase by 1%
- Decrease by 1%
Expected rate of increase in salary level across different age bands
- Increase by 1%
- Decreasc by 1%
Mortality rate
- 1 year mortality rate set back
- 1 year mortality rate set forward
Withdrawal rate
- Increase by 10%
- Decrease by 10%

14 PROVISION FOR ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX
a) Charge for the year

The zakat and income tax payable by the Company has been calculated in accordance with the zakat regulations in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,

The zakat and income tax provision for the year is based on the following:

Share capital
Capital reduction
Share capital after reduction

Accumulated deficit
Loss absorporation on account of capital reduction
Accumulated deficit after reduction

Loss before zakat, as adjusted

Provisions

Property and equipment, intangibles and investments

Other additions /deductions

Estimated zakat base

Saudi Sharcholders” share 98.98% (2020: 98.98%)

Zakat (2.5%)

Foreign Shareholders share from profit or (loss) adjusted 1.02% (2019: 1.02%).
Income tax (20%)

Total zakat and income tax

b) Zakat and income tax payable
The movement in zakat payable during the year were as follows:

At beginning of the year
Charge for the year
Prior year charge

Paid during the year
At end of the year

<) Status of assessments

2021 2020
SAR' 000 SAR' 000
5,076 4,308
5,638 4,813
5,661 4,831
5,050 4,286
5,344 4,546
5,342 4,548
5,231 4435
5,468 4,673
2021 2020
SAR' 000 SAR' 000
240,000 240,000
(110,000) -
130,000 240,000
(147,503) (85,666)
110,000 -
(37,503 (85,666)
(111,666) (32,434)
55,968 29414
(8,008) (11,387)
(9,562) {107,695)
19,229 32,232
19,034 (29,304)
491 (730)
(1,135) (331}
491 (730)
2021 2020
SAR' 000 SAR' 000
6,673 2,859
491 822
(2,761) 3,742
(2,270) 4,564
(844) (750
3,559 6,673

The Company has filed its zakat return to Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority ("ZATCA") tilt the year 2020. All the asscssments up to the year 2016
have been settled with ZATCA and a final clearance certificate has been obtained. During the year ended 31 December 2020, ZATCA issued zakat
assessment for the years 2017 and 2018 amounting to 6.2 million. The Company has filed objection against the assessment and the management believes
that the liability can be reduced 1o 3.7 million with a very high probability. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has also received
assessments along with penalties in respect of Value Added Tax ("VAT") for the years 2018 and 2019 amounting to 1.6 million. The Company objected

to the penalties which have been reversed by ZATCA and are under process for refund.

Puring the year, ZATCA requested information about zakat and tax returns for the years 2019 and 2020 which are still under review.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDILJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

15 SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2020, the authorized, subscribed and paid up share capitat of the Company was SR 240 million, divided into 24 million shares of SR
10 each. On 7 December 2020, the Board of Directors had recommended reducing the Company's share capital from SR 240 million to SR 130 million
divided into 13 million shares by offisetting with accumulated losses. In an extra-ordinary general meeting {second meeting) held on 11th Shawwal,
1442H corresponding to 23 May 2021, the shareholders' of the Company approved the reduction and the required changes in the Company by-laws
relating to this reduction. Accordingly, the share capital and acoumulated losses have been reduced by SR 110 million. The purpose of capital reduction
is to restructure the capital position of the Company in order to meet the compliance with the Companics Law, Subsequent to the year-end, the
Company's sharcholders have approved a share capital increase of SR 300 million in an extraordinary general meeting held on 28 February 2022, thus
increasing the number of shares from 13 million to 43 million. The share capital increase is subject to the regulatory approval of SAMA and CMA.
Shareholding siructure of the Company is as below;

2021 2020
Authorised, issued and paid up Authorised, issued and paid up
No, of Shares SAR000 No. of Shares SAR™000
Amana Guif Insurance Co. 1,771,000 17,719 4,408,800 44,088
Others 11,228,100 112,281 19,591,200 195,912
13,000,000 130,000 24,000,000 240,000
2023
15.1 Movement during the year No. of Shares

In thousands

Number of issuex shares as at 01 January 2021 24,000
Number of shares cancelled during the year (11,000
Weighted average number of shares as at 31 December 2021 13,000

16 LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Basic and dituted loss per share for the year have been caleulated by dividing the net loss for the year by the weighted average numbers of shares in issue
through out the year. The weighted average number of shares for the periods ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 have been arrived at by
taking the effect of reduction in the share capital.

2021 2020
SAR' (00 SAR’ 000
Loss for the vear (SAR '000) (1191;_3_)_5?% (61,837
Restared
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (in thousands) 13.000 13.000
§.oss per share- basic and diluted {9.16) {4.76)
17 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2021 2020
SAR' 000 SAR' 000
Employees' costs and salaries 35,987 28,061
Programs license expenses 3,205 1,941
Consultant and professional fees 2,772 2,160
Medical expenses 2,086 1,303
Rent 1,910 1,997
Employees' service cost {note 14) 1,574 1,184
Depreciation (note 9) 1,543 1,526
Allowances for BOD and related commitiee members 975 1,211
Advertisement promotion and printing 1,515 747
Government expenses 1,056 1,057
Communication expenses 956 1,475
Penaltics 380 -
Amortization (note 9) 37 376
Eleciric Expenses 315 164
Travel expenses 292 227
Bank charges 284 229
Withholding tax 219 247
Legal cases expenses 179 206
Others 4,266 1,697
59,891 45,808
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

18 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Retlated parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Company, and companies of which they are principal owners
and any other entities controlled, joinily controlled or significantly infiuenced by them. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the
Company’s management and Board of Directors. The following ace the details of the related party transactions during the vear and the related balances:

DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES Amounts of transuctions

Balances as at

2621 2020 202} 2020
SAR'000 SAR'GOD SAR'0O0 SAR'DOO
Entities controlied, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by related parties
E Seif companies group
w Insurance premium writlen 5,528 27,381 1,650 3,304
- Paid claims 403 15,977 - -
5,931 43,358 1,650 3,304
Al Durra Al Raeda Co
- Insurance premium written 45 98 20 71
- Paid claims - 4 - -
45 [0z 20 71
Abdulrahman Al Sakran
- Insurance premium written 10 13 - -
- Paid claims - 37 - -
1 53 - -
Naif Al Sudairy
- Insurance premium wriiten - 13 - 15
- i3 - 15
El Tukhy companies group
- Insurance premium writlen - - 356 356
- - 356 356
Globe-Med
- voluime rebate - - - 7,500
- - - 7,500
Total 5,986 43,526 2,026 11,246
Less: provision for doubtful receivables {733) (304)
Due from related parties, net _1,293 10&9&
The movement in the provision for doubtful receivables regarding refated parties was as following: 2021 2020
SAR' 000 SAR' 000
At the beginning of the year 304 408
Charge / (reversal) during the year 419 (104)
At the end of the year 733 304

DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
Amounts of transactions

Balances as ar

2021 2020 2621 2020
SAR'GO SAR'000 SAR'000 SAR'000
Board of Directors & related committee
Bonus apd other allowances 1,425 1,211 1,562 1,563
Glebe-Med (Group entity)
Adsministration fees for handling medical claims and others 5,180 11,384 3,369 356
6,605 12,595 4,931 1,919

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Key management personnel are persons having authority and responsibiiity for planning, directing and controliing the activities of the Company, directly or
indirectly and comprise top management executives including the Chief Executive Officer, and the Chief Financial Officer of {he Company.

The eompensation of key management personnel during the year is as follows:

Salaries and other allowances
End-of-service benefits
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2021 2020
SAR' 600 SAR' 000
5372 4,003
665 199
6,037 4,202
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

21 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it is able to continue as going concern and comply with the SAMA’s capital
requirements while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Company consists of equity attributable to shareholders comprising paid capital and accamulated deficit.

The Company maintains its capital as per guidelines 1aid out by SAMA in Article 66 fable 3 and 4 of the Implementing Regulations
detailing the solvency margin required to be maintained. According to the article, the Company shall maintain solvency margin
equivalent to the highest of the following three methods as per SAMA Implementing Regulations:

Minimum Capital Requirement of SAR 100 millicn
Premium Solvency Margin
Claims Solvency Margin

22  RISK MANAGEMENT
The risks faced by the Company and the way these risks are mitigated by management are summarized below:

Risk governance

The Company’s risk governance is manifested in a set of established policies, procedures and controls which uses the existing
orgenizational structure to meet strategic targets, The Company’s philosophy revofves on willing and knowledgeable risk
acceptance commensurate with the risk appetite and a strategic plan approved by the Board of Directors. The Company is exposed
to tASUTance, reinsurance, currency, conmmission rate, credit, liguidity, market price, and regulatory framework risks.

Risk management structure

Organizational structure is established within the Company in order to identify, assess, monitor and control risks.

Board of directors

The risk governance is the centralized oversight of the Board of Directors providing direction and the necessary approvals of
strategies and policies in order to achieve defined cotporate goals.

Senior management

Senior management is responsible for the day to day operations towards achieving the strategic goals within the Company’s pre-
defined risk appetite.

Risk Management and Audit committees

Risk management processes throughout the Company examine both the adequacy of the procedures and the Company’s compliance
with such procedures. The risk and internal audit departments discusses the results of all assessments with senior management, and
reports its findings and recommendations directly to the risk management and audit committees.

The risks faced by the Company and the way these risks are mitigated by management are summarized below.

insurance risk

The 7igsk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will occur including the uncertainty of the amount and timing
of any resulting claim, The principal risk the Company faces under such contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments
exceed the carrying amount of insurance liabilities, This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits
paid are greater than originally estimated and subsequent development of long-term claims.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

22 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Insurance risk (continned)

Significant portion of reinsurance business ceded is placed on excess of loss treaty. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are
estimated in a manner consistent with the assumptions used for ascertaining the underlying policy benefits and are presented in the
statement of financial position as reinsurance assets.

Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit
exposure exists with respect to reinsurance ceded, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet itg obligations assumed under
such reinsurance arrangements.

Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors like natural disasters, flood, environmental and economical,
atmospheric disturbances, concenteation of risks, civil riots etc. The Company manages these risk through the measures described
above. The Company has limited its exposure to catastrophic and riot events by use of refnsurance arran gements.

Concentration of insurance risk

The Company monitors concentration of insurance risks primarily by class of business. The major concentration lies in medical
segment.

The Company also monitors concentration of risk by evaluating multiple risks covered in the same geographical location, For flood
or carthquake risk, a complete city is classified as a single location. For fire and property risk a particular building and neighboring
buildings, which could be affected by 4 single claim incident, are considered as a single location. Similarly, for marine sk,
multiple risks covered in a single vessel voyage are considered as a single risk while assessing concentration of risk. The Company
evaluates the concentration of exposures to individual and cumulative insurance risks and establishes its reinsurance policy to
reduce such exposures to levels aceeptable to the Company.

Since the Company operates in Saudi Arabia only, hence, all the insurance risks relate to policies written in Saudi Arabia.
Sensitivity analysis

The Company believes that the claim Habilities under insurance contracts outstanding at the reporting date are adequate, However,
these amounts are not certain and actual payments may differ from the claims liabilities provided in the financial statements, The
insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the various assumptions. It has not been possible to quantify the sensitivity of specific

variable such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the estimation process.

A hypothetical 10% change in the claim ratio, net of reinsurance, would impact net underwriting incomes(loss) as follows:

Impact of change in ¢Iaim ratio by +/- 10%

2021 2020
SAR060 SAR000
Medical 5,100 7,021
Motor 2,591 831
Property & casualty 28 83
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2421

22  RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Reinsurance risk

Similar to other insurance companies, in order to minimize financial exposure arising from large claims, the Company, in the
normal course of business, enters into agreements with other parties for reinsurance purposes.

To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial condition of its
retnsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities or economic characteristics
of the reinsurers.

Reinsurers are selected using the following parameters and guidelines set by the Company’s Board of Directors and Reinsurance
Committee. The criteria may be summarized as foliows:

- Minimum acceptable credit rating by recognized rating agencies that is not lower than (BBB).
- Reputation of particylar reinsurance companies
- Existing ot past business relationship with the reinsurer.

The exception to this rule is in respect of local companies who do not carry any such credit rating. This, however, is limited to those
companies registered and approved by the Local Insurance Regulators,

Furthermore, the financial strength and managerial and technical expertise as well as historical performance, wherever applicable,
are thoroughly reviewed by the Company and matched against a list of requirements pre- set by the Company’s Board of Directors
before approving them for exchange of reinsurance business. As at 31 December 2021, one major reinsurer's balance comprise of
32% of reinsurance balance (2020: 52%).

Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders and as & result the Company remains
liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails to meet the obligations under the
reinsurance agreements,

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign exchange rates {currency risk), market commission rates (commission rate
tisk) and market prices (price rigk),

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
Management assesses that there is minimal risk of significant losses due to exchange rate flactuations.

Commission rate risk

The Company places deposits that are subject to commission rate risk, with the exception of restricted deposits which are required
to be maintained in accordance with SAMA regulations on which the Company does not eamn any commission. Commission rate
tisk to the Company is the risk of changes in commission rates reducing the overall return on its fixed commission rate bearing
securities. The Commission rate risk is limited by monitoring changes in comsmission rates.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDE JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

22 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market risk (continued)
The commission and non-commission bearing investments of the Company and their maturities as at December 31, 2021 and 2020

are as follows:
Commission bearing

Non-
Less commission Total
than 1 1 to 5 years Over 5 years X
. bearing
Insurance Operations year
SAR' 000 SAR000 SAR000 SAR'000 SAR000
2021 - - - 1,923 1,923
2020 - - - 1,923 1,923
Commission bearing Non-
Less commission Total
thani  1to5 years Over 5 years bearin
Sharcholders Operations year g
SAR'000 SAR 000 SAR'008 SAR'000 SAR 006
2021 3__52672 31,258 12,940 13,259 93,;29
2020 120,561 36,615 12,430 10,949 180,553

Otiser price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from commission rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specitic to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company's investments amounting to SAR 13.25 million {2020: SAR 10.9 million) are susceptible to market price risk arising
from uncertainty about the future value of invested securities. The Company limits this nature of market risk by diversifying its
mvested portfolio and by actively monitoring the developments in markets.

The impact of hypothetical change of a 0% increase and 10% decrease in the market prices of investments on Company's total
comprehensive loss would be as follows:

Fair Value Effect on company's loss

change (SAR' 000

2021 +- 18% 1,326
2020 +/- 10% 1,095

The sensitivity analysis presented is based upon the portfolio position as at December 31, 2021 and 2020. Accordingly, the
sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Company's assets of future movements in the value of
investrments held by the Company.

W

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a

financial loss. For all classes of financial assets held by the Company, the maximum exposure to credit risk to the Company is the
carrying value as disclosed in the statement of financial position.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2021

22 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)
The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit risk:

- The Company only enters into insurance and reinsurance contracts with recognized, credit worthy third parties, it is the
Company’s policy that all customers who wish o trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivables from insurance and reinsurance contracts are monitored on an ongotng basis in order to reduce the Company’s exposure
to bad debts,

- The Company with respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets, is restricted to commercial banks and counterparties
having strong balance sheets and credit ratings,

Concentration of credit risk
Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties whose
aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company’s total credit exposure. The Company’s portfolio of financial

instruments is not broadly diversified however, transactions are entered into with credit-worthy counterparties thereby mitigating
any significant concentrations of credit risk.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position:

2021 2020
SAR' 000 SAR' 000
Insurance Sharcholders' Insurance  Sharcholders'
Note R . . .

Operations Operations Operations Operations
Cash and cash equivalents 4 21,368 25,672 35,667 98,316
Short Term deposit 5 - 10,009 - 40,000
Premiums and reinsurers’ receivable - net 6 87.543 - 129,207 -
Investments net of quoted eqguity investments & 1,923 44,198 1,923 49,045
Statutory deposit 11 - 19,500 - 36,000
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims 7a 1,267 - 11,763 .

112.101 99.370 178,560 223364

Credit risk exposure investments
The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Company by chissifying assets according to the
management’s best estimate. Investment grade is considered to be the highest possible rating.

2021 2020 2021 2020
Note SAR'000 SAR'000 SAR'00 SAR'Q00
Investment grade Non investment grade
Cash and cash equivalents 4 47,040 133,983 - -
Short Term deposit 5 10,000 40,000 - -
Premiums and reinsurers' receivable - net 6 - - 87,543 129,207
Reinsurers' share of outstanding claims 7a - - 1,267 11,763
Available-for-sale investments 8 - - 15,182 12,872
Held-to-maturity investments 8 44,198 49,045 - -
Statutory deposit 13 19,500 36,000 - -
120,738 259,028 103,992 153,842

45




o

006 65¥ 699°L01 1€T5E S0Y'$97 67588 9L8°SLT

9.8C 9.8 - 686'C 6867 - sodap A10JMBIS UO SWOOU UOISSITIUIOD PORINY

000°9¢ 000°9¢ - 00S°61 00861 - il nsodap K1oymg

006 006 - SLS SLS - & s)o8se HqiJumug

9L6'S 9L6°C - S80°0 5809 - 5 wamdmbe pue Ausdorg

11¢°1z - 11512 ISP - TISPE ) $198SE JOYJ0 pue sjustukedasy

S¥0'ef SHO'6¥ - 86T'tp 861t - 8 SIISUISAAUT AJLINRUI-03-PIaf

TLRTI TL8'TI - I81°s1 8161 - g SYUSTIISAAUL 3[ES-10]-O[(B]IBAY

010°11 - 01011 969°TT - 909°71 PL 1500 uonIsinboe Lorjod paiiajeq

10LT - 10T S0T°1 - SO B/ pautodai Jou jng paLinour SWIRLS JO AIBYS SIANSUIY

£9L°TY - EOLTT L97°1 - L9y 173 SWFes SWIpUeISING JO 2I18ys SIMINSUIOY

9¢0°z - 950°C CEF'E - €EHT qz swnnasd patresun Jo areys SIOINSUISY

LOT 6T - LOT' 621 £PS'L8 - £FeiLg G 18U - I[UBAIIIAL SISINSUIRE DU SWINIHOI]

000°0F - 000°0F 00001 - 600°0T S nsodap uLa | Hoyg

£86°€E1 - £86°CET OLO'LY - OLO°LY ¥ sjusjeamba yses pue yse)
. SLASSV

IB2A 3UO Ieak auo 210N
204 e asopy IeaA SUO B §53 ®10], B IE34 U0 ey} §59°f
000 VS 000 WVS
0z0z 1Z0¢

JUBOGIUSIS 10U ST BULUNOoSIp Jo Jorduy ot se saoue[eq Burlued 1y jenbs yorgm smofg yseo PRIINOSsIpUNn
[EMIBNUOd ay) 358 PISOISIP JUNOWE SYT "SILI[IRT] SOUBINSUT PozINZ0001 QY WOy SMoIno yses jeu Jo Surum PRIBUINSS 2l uo paseq paummiialep are sajyod Ajuimeur sonIiqer]
DEN[UOD SoULINSUL JO "SUOWRSIIQO [emornu0d SUIUIRWAI TO paseq Auedwory o) 10 senIIqel] [eIoUBUI pue s)osse Jetoueuy Ay jo djyoid ALINEW S SIZLBWWNS MO[3q JqLl A

sapfosg Amgopy
"OSLIB AU SB SJUDUNTIWOD AUE JOU 0] O[qRHIEAR 218 Spuny pmbi[ JusIOIYNS ey} SSINSUS JuSwsSeurty pue siseq A[uow
¥ U0 Paiojiuotr sl sjuawainbor A1pinbi -enp ey Aoy vsym SOIIQE] [RISUBIY YA PIRIOOSSE SIUSHIHIUIOD SIT 103U 0} 3{qE 9q 10U [jim Auedwoy a3 jey) ysu oy st ysu Aupinbry

ASLT Appmbry

(AANNELNOD) INTNADVNVIA MSIY 727

ECOT HAGINADAA 1€ AAANT AVIAA THL 304
(QINNLINOD) SINFWALVLS TVIONVNIA 0L OL SLLON
(ANVAINOD IADOLS INIOL IAAVS V)

ANVAINOD ADNVANSNI FALLVITdO0D VNVIAY



Ly

"21p pus polied Y3 woy sypuow ¢ | Jo pouad B unpim 2[nes 01 pajoadyo ore SONIIRI] ISI0 puUB sasuadxa patusoe *a1qeAed sure]o sapjoykorjod ey -

"SjUSWaaIFe duRINSUIAL JO suLa) Jod se siseq Jou & uo PAIIas aue ojqeded saour[eq siemsuloy -

‘wodar 01snipe ss0f Jo 1de0al Jo a1ep oy woy SIPUOWE 7| WM pajnas

Aj[e1ouas ore aumeu JuslayuI oY) 0} anp saporfod Jayo [[v uswiked 103 sounewn A1ojnge)s [ S0UEPIOOOE WY SYIUOW ¢ UMM 213398 0} paroadixs are swiepd Supuelsino ssord Jo fuoley -
*SMO[[0) $8 A[IAS 63 Pa3IadXa e Jeak 2U0 NEY) S59] AJLINJBUL GIIM SANIIQRI]

"PUBLISP UO S[qE[TRAR J1E SIOUBJEq YUR] PUB Yse’) -

SI2INSULIL Y11 SAOUBTE] JO JUIWA[NIS UO PIseq SGIIOW § 0) ¢ UIyjim pazifear A[jessuss a1e PUE SISSIUISNQ JOI0UN pUe [20Ipaw 03 utened Apjofew stwrefo Furpue)sjno Jo s1eys somsurey -
e1ep uonIsod [RISUEHL JO JUSWISIEIS oY) WO (Teak suo tey) sso;) STHUOWE T 0 [3UOUL T UI}M PI[MaS / parmews oq 0} peyadxs are sisodop eyeqeInpy -

“218p SUOHISO [RIoUBLL O JUSWISILS WOL SYIUON 7] UM POZI[8al 2q 0) pa1oadxa SI SWOOUT JHSUISIAUL PANIOTY -

ISMOT10) S 3Z}{Ea1 0) PRORdXa 91k A¥AL QUL WRT) SSOT AJImETE Y)IM SjIsSE Y,

6ET C6 “L¥C 001 (800°8) rTT90 86108 @reoeD des Lypmby jeroy,

199°L9¢ eyl €T 09¢ 615067 1£€°8 8RI1'78T

9L8°T 9L8°T - 686°C 686°C VINVS 01 ojqeAed Swoour UOISSIUIOD paniooy

€L9'9 - £L9'0 655°¢ - 655 1 X} SUIOOUT PUE JE)BZ 10] UOISIACL]

6LL - 6LL 6LL - oLL 0 apqgeAed vonnqugsip sujdmg

9rs'y 9PSy “ we's TFE'S - £1 SIJRURq B0IAIS-JO-pua Saakofdiusy

S6L'Y - S6LY 818°c - gIg‘c 0 QAJIASII [ROTUNS9) IO

ARSI - TIL'ST LOTLT - Lot1°LT 0 QAI2821 £SUIIOYOP SWINITALY

8¥1°8S - 8Y1°'8S 0ST'8S - 057°8S .7 pajiodal 30U Inq pasinou: sune[))

199°¢¢ - 199°¢¢ 31720 k4 - 108°12 2/ surrefo Jurpueising

95y - 9st e - (4 14 o/ UOISSHUIIOD SOURINSUIRI PIUIBSL()

001°T¥1 - 001°TH1 S6TELT - S6TCII qz swriwaad pawesun)

088°7T - 055°TT 9L1'8 - 9L1'8 siqeded seoue|eq souLIMSULY

180°¢s - 180°€L £10°7Y - £I6°TH Z1 SOIN[IGRI] JSYI0 puE $aSUAdXe peniony

P8T'1 - v8T°1 $81°¢ - §8+°c a[qeded sunepd s1apjoyorod
SALLITIEVIT

Teoh auo . 1834 2uo S10N
2101 I 1824 JUO URY] $$9] ®og, - AR34 QU0 UBY} $59]
000 VS 000 AVS
020t 1702

(Ponutnod) sagifosg Quimvpy
(ponupyuod) ysex Kpmbry

(AANNILINOD) INFINAOVNVIA MSIN 7

10T JHIWADEA 1€ CAANT dVIA FHL U404
{@GENNILNOD) SINTWALVIS TVIONVNIA AHL OJ, SALON
(ANVJIWOD MD0LS INIOF IGNVS V)

ANVAINOD FINVHASNI HAILVHAJ00) VNVINV



AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

22 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes, technology
and infrastructure supporting the Company’s operations either internally within the Company or extemally at the Company’s service
providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and tiquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory
requirements and generally accepted standards of investment management behavior. Operational risks arise from all of the
Company’s activities.

The Company s objective is to manage operational risk so s to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its reputation with
achieving its investment objective of generating returns for investors. The primary responsibility for the development and

implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the Board of Directors. This responsibility encompasses the controls in
the following areas;

- Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;
- Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

- Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

- Documentation of controls and procedures;

- Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and
procedures to address the risks identified;

- Ethical and business standards; and
- Risk mitigation policies and procedures.

Senior management ensures that the Company's staff has adequate training and experience and fosters effective communication
related to operational risk management.

23 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction takes place either:

- in the accessible principal market for the asset or Hability, or
- in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantages accessible market for the asset or Tiability

Determination of fair value and fuir value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosin g the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: Quoted market prices in an active market (that are unadjusted) for identical assets or liabifities,

Level 2: Valuation techniques (for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable), and

Level 3: Valuation techniques (for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable),
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUPIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

23 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

a) Carrping amounts and fair value

The foliowing table summarizes the fair values of financial assets as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 by level of the fair value
hierarchy.

Insurance operations As at 31 December 2021 (SAR' 060)
Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fotal
value
Available for sale investments
Shares 1,923 - - 1,923 1,923
1,923 - - 1,923 1,923
As at 31 December 2020 (SAR' 000)
Carrying Level ] Level 2 Level 3 Total
value
Available for sale investments
Shares 1,923 - - 1,923 1,923
1,923 - - 1,923 1,923
Shareholders’ operations As at 31 December 2021 (SAR' 000)
Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
value _
Available for sale investments
Shares and REIT 13,259 13,259 - - 13,259
13,259 13,259 - - 13,259
As at 31 December 2020 (SAR' 000)
Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
value _
Available for sale investments
Shares and REIT 10,949 10,949 - - 10,949
10,949 10,949 - - 10,949

There were no transfers between levels during the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,

The fair value of other financial assets and liabilities, not included in the table above, are not materially different from the carrying
values included in the financial statements.

b) Measurement of fair value

Available-for-sale investment at level 3 represents unquoted securities amounting to SAR 1.92 million in respect of the Company’s
share in the capital of Najm. As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the investment has not been measured at fair value in
the absence of active market or other means of measuring their fair value reliably. However, the management believes that there is
no major difference between the carrying value and fair value of the investment.

24  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

) The Company's commitments and contingencies are as follows: 2021 2020
SAR' 000 SAR' 000
Capital work in progress 122 _ 3,829
122 3,829

b} The Company operates in the insurance industry and is subject to legal proceedings in the normal course of business. While it is
not practicable to forecast or determine the final results of all pending or threatened legal proceedings, management does not believe
that such proceedings (including litigations) will have a material effect on its results and financial position.
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